MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Board of Trustees Agenda
Wednesday, January 7, 6:30 PM

The Chairman has determined that the anchor location for this meeting will be held at:
5455 West Old Hwy Rd, Mountain Green, UT 84050.
Public Welcome

Call to Order (Quorum)

Prayer

Agenda

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

Approval of Minutes (Motion)

Public Comment Period - Public Comment may be in person, provided in advance,

or electronically using the information provided below:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83010955616 Meeting ID: 830 1095 5616

Tmoow>

AGENDA

1. Board Positions
1. Resignation of board member
ii. Appointment of board member
iii. Appointment of board positions
2. Facilities Committee
1. Plant Expansion — Sunrise/Plant Manager
L Plant Update
IL. Project Payments and Change Orders
I1I. Substantial / Final Completion Update
3. Plant Manager Discussion

1. Walkway

ii. ERU definition

1. Bioworks/Huber payment update

iv. Documentation with COP 2026 expenses
4. Manager Discussion

1. Caselle software

il. Privacy Policy Reports

1. Kent Smith Park update
Executive Committee
Closed Session to discuss pending litigation, property purchase, or personnel
Board New Business
Motion to Adjourn

AN

1|Page


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83010955616

MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Call to Order (Quorum)

Prayer

Agenda

Declaration of Conflict of Interest
Approval of Minutes (Motion)

moowy

Board of Trustees Budget Hearing Minutes
Wednesday, December 3, 2025, 6:00 PM
UNAPPROVED

Board Members Present: Chairman Coutts, Vice-Chair Hill, Member Willardson (Via Zoom),
Member Earley (Via Zoom), Member Nielsen

Employees Present: Manager Sorensen, Brittany Wayman, Ashley Benson

Guests Present: None

A. Call to Order: Chairman Coutts called the meeting to order at 6:01pm
B. Prayer: Member Nielsen

C. Agenda: No Changes

D. Declaration of Conflict of Interest: None

AGENDA
1. Public Hearing
i Public Hearing:

A motion was made recess the open meeting and convene the 2026 MGSID Budget Public
Hearing

Motion — Member Hill

2nd — Member Nielsen

Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member
Willardson

Member Nielsen

BRI

Member Earley

Motion Passed

Member Hill remarks:
Prepared Statement for MGSID Public Meeting - 2025 and 2026 Budget

My name is Nathan Hill. As a board member on the Finance Committee, I’ve been asked to
make some prepared remarks on the Amended 2025 budget, the 2026 Construction Budget and
the 2026 General Budget before opening the meeting up for public comment.

2|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Jeremy, please open the Amended 2025 spreadsheet first. 1’d like to jump down to the bottom
line first (Row 103). Our Total Expenses were approximately $3.6M less than our planned
budget and our total income (Row 105) was approximately $2.2M more than our planned
income. We will balance the budget by moving that extra $5.8M to our Expansion Accounts
(Row 104). This is, of course, a good news story for 2025. Now, let’s go to the top of the
spreadsheet so we can cover some of the highlights and the reasons for this good news.

(Row 8) Because we gained more new customers than anticipated, we received approximately
$81K more in Monthly Service Fees. (Row 15) Because of the high interest rates and because
our new construction did not progress as quickly as expected, our interest-bearing accounts
earned approximately $120K more than anticipated. (Row 24) Because we paid most of our first
Bond Payment from a different account, our Bond Payment was approximately $689K less than
anticipated. (Row 30) Because we did not renew our AES Contract, we did not pay out $204K.
(Row 55) Because we did not require as much sewer line cleaning, we saved approximately
$49K. (Row 64) Because the new plant was not fully completed, we did not need to take off as
much depreciation and saved another $983K. (Rows 78 & 79) Because we received more,
unanticipated Grant money from the State, and because of unanticipated extra growth, we
received approximately $2.1M in extra Construction Income. (Row 96) Because the new plant
construction was slower than anticipated, we spent approximately $3.2M less. Overall, this was
a very unusual year; and most of the unusual occurrences worked in our favor.

Jeremy, please open the proposed 2026 Construction spreadsheet. We anticipate completion of
the plant in early 2026. We’ll owe COP construction approximately $900K (Row 28). We do
not anticipate receiving any more Construction Income, so we’ll make our final payments from
the interest-bearing expansion accounts (Row 36). These accounts have more than enough
money to cover these expenses.

Now, I’d like Jeremy to open the proposed 2026 General Budget spreadsheet. We used our
historical average growth rate of 4.55% to compute our Monthly Service Fees (Row 8) and our
Impact Fees (Row 15). This could be a conservative estimate. If we exceed this growth rate,
then we’ll adjust our 2026 budget in December just as we are adjusting our 2025 budget today.
(Row 25) Our Bond Interest Payment and Capital Expense is approximately $560K more than
2025 because we plan to pay for the entire cost from our 2026 income rather than from the
interest-bearing accounts. (Row 29) Although it appears our salaries are reduced for 2026, they
have actually increased. This row is for our administrative personnel only. The salary for our
operations personnel is displayed in Operation Expenses (Row 41). The combined
administrative and operation salaries are approximately $382K; this is an overall increase of
approximately $110K from 2025. Our overall 2026 Operations Expenses (Row 67) are
approximately $250K more than 2025. This is primarily because of our new plant. As a
reminder, our new plant uses a completely different, and more expensive, method than our pond
system. The water flowing out of the plant and into the Weber River is also much cleaner; this
cleaner water was a requirement from the State and one of the reasons we needed to build a new
plant. Additionally, the new plant more than doubled our capacity and will allow us to meet the
demands of the growth in Mountain Green. Moving on to Row 69, our depreciation expense has

3|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

increased by approximately $1M to cover the new plant. To balance the 2026 budget, we will
need to move approximately $320K from our interest-bearing accounts (Row 74). However, just
like in 2025, there are many variables that may either reduce or increase our expenses and our
income. For example, if the growth in Mountain Green is 6% instead of 4.55%, then we will not
need to transfer any money in order to balance the budget.

Mr. Chairmen, that concludes my prepared remarks.

ii. Request for public comments — None
iii. Close Public Hearing

A motion was made to Close the 2025 MGSID Budget Public Hearing and resume the open
meeting

Motion — Member Hill
2nd — Member Nielsen

Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

MemberWillardson

Member Nielsen

SRRIEISIS

Member Earley

Motion Passed
2. Motion to Adopt Budget and amended budget
A motion was made to adopt the current and amended budgets as presented

Motion — Member Earley
2nd — Member Nielsen

Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member
Willardson

Member Nielsen

IS

Member Earley

Motion Passed

4|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

3. Motion to Adjourn

A motion was made to Adjourn the meeting at 6:10 PM
Motion — Member Nielsen
2nd — Member Hill

Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member
Willardson

Member Nielsen

SEIESISIES

Member Earley

Motion Passed

Meeting Adjourned

A motion was made to approve the December 3, 2025 Budget Hearing minutes as presented.
Motion - Member
2nd — Member

Trustees Voting Aye Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Nielsen

Member Earley

Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, December 3, 6:30 PM
UNAPPROVED

Board Members Present: Chairman Coutts, Vice-Chair Hill, Member Willardson (Via Zoom), Member
Earley, Member Nielsen

Employees Present: Manager Sorensen, Brittany Wayman, Ashley Benson

Guests Present: None

Call to Order: Chairman Coutts called the meeting to order at 6:30pm
Prayer: Member Willardson

Agenda: No Changes

Declaration of Conflict of Interest: None

Approval of Minutes:

moom>

5|Page




MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

A motion was made to approve the November 5th, 2025 board meeting minutes as presented
Motion - Member Nielsen

2nd - Member Hill

Trustees Voting

Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Nielsen

Member Earley

REEEN

Motion Passed

F. Public Comment Period - None

AGENDA

1. Facilities Committee

i.

Plant Expansion — Sunrise/Plant Manager: Manager Sorensen gave the update
since both Jared Andersen and Jeff Lundgreen with Sunrise were both absent. The
plant is up and running except for the front end (Grit removal equipment).

L Plant Update — Clarifier, front-end status: Getting the front-end running
will require assistance from the manufacturer (Hach). COP has been
somewhat unresponsive. Payments are being withheld to prompt
communication with them.

11 Project payments and Change Orders: None this month

1I1. Substantial Completion Update: Substantial completion has not been
achieved due to ongoing operational issues. Currently, cold conditions
are causing equipment to freeze, creating additional challenges. COP is
no longer onsite as they are now on another job. However, the plant
manager is in communication with COP and they should be onsite
tomorrow to review and remedy the issues.

2. Plant Manager Discussion:

6|Page

15

ii.

Update plant machine/equipment testing: Dennis Gunn from Rural Water has
been educating our team on starting up the lab and providing hands-on training.
Lab training is provided through the Rural Water Users Association and is
separate from manufacturer equipment training. Manufacturer training for
specific equipment (e.g. Huber) will occur upon installation and setup. Lab
operations will support daily monitoring and provider data on plant performance.

Pond 2 Operation: Pond 2 is not yet generating sufficient biological activity
(“bugs”) due to the large pond size and the cold weather. Solids are being pumped
back into pond 2 to help build up the “bugs.” Two batches of sludge from Coalville
have also been added to aid the process. The digesters are not expected to be used
for 2-3 months. These delays will extend the timeline before COP can declare final



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

iii.

.

5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

completion. The plant is still on track for the January 1, 2026 state deadline with
the Division of Water Quality. The new plant increased capacity to 1.5 million
gallons from the previous ~600,00 gallons. Without the new plant, the system
would likely be nearing prior limits in the near future. The board agreed that
constructing the new plant earlier rather than later was a prudent decision.

COP 2025 end of year payment: The district will not be paying additional money to
COP until final completion in 2026.

COP withhold amount: Latest communication with Jared Nessler indicates he is
comfortable with the current payment status. The district will withhold $650,000,
assuming there are no change orders, until final completion in 2026. The board
anticipates that will be around June or July following full-up sludge operations
and the completion of landscaping. There was a question raised regarding a
$900,000 budget allocation versus the stated $650,000. Clarification was provided
that the $900,000 includes anticipated closeout costs such as engineering fees,
closing costs, etc.

ERU definition update to Sewer Ordinance: Jared has reached out to other entities
and is awaiting responses.

3. Manager Discussion

i.

Summary of Twin D Cleaning and Repairs: Twin D has completed their annual
acoustic testing. Thirty-nine miles of sewer lines and 1,000 manholes were
inspected. Only 3.25 miles required flushing and cleaning. No structural failures
were identified. Issues were largely related to flow obstructions. Cleaning was
addressed by flushing out the obstructions which was successful. Approximately
$150K is budgeted for Twin D to perform similar work next year.

The WPR warranty was discussed. WPR has a one-year warranty with WPRUD who also has an
additional one-year warranty with the district for a total of a 2-year warranty. Cleaning services are the
district’s responsibility while WPR is under warranty.

ii.

Meeting Schedule 2026: The Board of Trustees 2026 Meeting Schedule will be on
the following proposed dates (1 Wednesday of each month) at 6 pm: January 7"
February 4™ March 4", April 1°, May 6™, June 3", July 1, August 5", September
2" October 7", November 4", December 2™

A motion was made to approve the 2026 meeting schedule
Motion - Member Earley

2nd - Member Hill

Trustees Voting

Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Nielsen

Member Earley

e[ <[ <
Q

Motion Passed

7|Page




MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

iii. Fraud Risk: Bookkeeping assignments were reviewed. Findings were unchanged
firom last year. The district passed with a very low risk level. Items of note are: the
district does not have licensed CPA on staff, and no employee receives 40 hours of
formal training per year. The board discussed whether offering additional formal
training to a management team member would be beneficial or not. The training
could be funded within the existing training budget if deemed necessary.

Separation of duties were discussed. Improvements have been noted due to having two employees in
the front office allowing for more effective checks and balances. The secretary is no longer a check
signer which is also an improvement to internal controls. Management expressed confidence that
financial protections are stronger than ever, and the district passed the audit review with no issues.

A motion was made to approve the 2026 fraud risk assessment
Motion - Member Hill
2nd - Member Earley

Trustees Voting e Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Nielsen

< e o< e

Member Earley

Motion Passed

iv. Utah Retirement System (URS) retirement approval: This is a requirement for state
compliance. 2026 URS rates need to be adopted to participate in the URS. The
2026 rates were presented and reviewed. It was noted that the majority of
employees are Tier 2. No questions were raised.

A motion was made to approve and adopt the 2026 URS rates.
Motion - Member Nielsen
2nd - Member Willardson

Trustees Voting Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Nielsen

[ [ 3¢ <
Q

Member Earley

Motion Passed
V. Vet Clinic Payback Plan approval: Manager Sorensen and Member Early

presented a contract to the Vet Clinic. They have signed it and will return it. They
plan to have renters in the coming month and repayment will begin in January.
There was a discrepancy noted in the contract where service charges were listed at
850 per month rather than $55. The agreed solution was to update the numbers to
855 and have all parties initial and date for validation. If required, the contract will
be resigned.

8|Page




MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

Vi.

5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Software Update: Quickbooks is becoming cumbersome and is not a long-term
solution as the district continues to grow. The district has done extensive research
on new software and has decided on Casselle. It is a utility specific billing and
accounting software. It is more expensive than Quickbooks but will benefit the
district and the customers greatly. It will have an initial startup cost of about $19K
with an annual cost of about $14K. This will provide customers with the option of
account visibility and ACH payments which is an everyday request from customers.
It will eliminate the need for Heartland, and will also reduce staff workload and
overtime. All of this will help facilitate future growth and efficiency. Initial setup
should take place in January, and will be good timing for the 2026 Audit. The
proposal needs to be reviewed by the board, and their feedback is requested by
December 15th. The contract will be signed and ratified next month upon approval.

4. Executive Committee

i.

ii.

Kent Smith Park County Discussion: The county has not yet responded to the latest
MGSID submission.

Christmas Party: The party will take place this Saturday at Carlos and Harley’s at
5 pm.

5. Closed Session to discuss pending litigation, property purchase, or personnel: None
6. Board New Business: None
7. Motion to Adjourn:

A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 7 _: 04_pm.
Motion - Member Nielsen
2nd - Member Earley

Trustees Voting

Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Nielsen

Member Earley

e [ [ [ o<
Q

Motion Passed

Next Meeting January 7, 2026

A motion was made to approve the December 3, 2025 board meeting minutes as presented.

Motion - Member
2nd — Member

9|Page




MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Trustees Voting Aye Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Earley

F. Public Comment Period

AGENDA

1. Board Positions
1. Resignation of board member
L Taylor Nielsen

Taylor Nielsen Resignation
1 message

Taylor Nielsen <tayniels@gmail.com> Sun, Dec 28, 2025 at 7:59 AM
To: Jeremy Sorensen <manager@mgsid.com>, Bill Coutts <coutter21@yahoo.com>, Russell Willardson
<ruwillardson@gmail.com>, Barb and Nathan Hill <lotharf16@hotmail.com>, Louise Earley <louise_earley@yahoo.com>

MGSID Board of Trustees,

Per Article ll, Section 8 of the Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District Bylaws, please accept this letter as formal
notice of my resignation from the MGSID Board of Trustees. In accordance with that section, my resignation is effective
upon delivery of this email.

It has been a true pleasure to serve on the Board for the past seven years. | am deeply appreciative of the opportunity to
work alongside such a dedicated and capable group in service to the Mountain Green community.

During my tenure, the District has achieved several significant milestones that position it well for long-term success.
These include the completion of comprehensive sewer master plans, the adoption of updated and more sustainable rate
structures, implementation of a new impact fee schedule, productive collaboration with key partners such as Wasatch
Peaks and other growth areas, and the successful commissioning and bringing online of the new wastewater treatment
plant. These accomplishments reflect the Manager and Board's thoughtful leadership, long-range planning, and
commitment to responsible stewardship.

We have had a great run, and | have been honored to have had a seat at the table with this fine group. As with all things,
however, the end is just as important as the beginning. | am confident the District is on strong footing and that the Board
will continue to guide it with integrity and vision in the years ahead.

Thank you again for the opportunity to serve and for your continued service to our community. | wish each of you, and the
District as a whole, continued success.

Respectfully,

Taylor Nielsen

ii. Appointment of board member
L Nathan Hill
1. Appointed to fill open position

II. Emily Boyle

10|Page




MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

EMILY BARGE BOYLE
6292 Highland Drive | Mountain Green, UT 84050 | Emily. barge@gmail.com | 214 458 8951

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Senior Preconstruction Engineer

Holder Construction — Denwver, CO f Remaote 2019 - 2025

¢ Led procurement efforts for mission critical construction projects valued at approximately
520 million, including managing bid packages, scope of work coordination, trade contractor
qualification, and contract award processes.

* Supported procurement efforts for confidential mission critical and aviation construction
prajects ranging from 51505500 million, contributing to detailed estimates, value
engineering efforts, and bid leveling analyses.

¢ Collaborated with design partners, trade contractors, and project owners to optimize
constructability, budget alignment, and schedule feasibility throughout all design phases.

» Developed comprehensive estimate packages, risk analyses, and scope narratives to support

GMP development and executive decision-making.

Graduate Teaching Assistant

Auburn University — Auburn, AL 2018 — 2019

* Supported faculty instruction in construction communications coursewaork, assisting with
curriculum development and student project reviews.

Marketing Manager

3north — Richmond, VA 2016 - 2018

» Directed firm-wide marketing and proposal strategy, managing pursuits and business
development initiatives for architecture and design projects.

# Partnered with firm leadership to prioritize opportunities and maintain relationships with
clients, consultants, and contractors.

»  Oversaw vendor coordination, budgets, and production of all marketing collateral,
proposals, and award submissions.

Communications Manager

Boston Preservation Alliance — Boston, MA 2015 - 2016

¢ Developed and implanted communications strategy and public outreach for a citywide
historic preservation nonprofit.

» Managed the promotion and execution of all Alliance events, including the organization's
annual Preservation Achievement Awards, Annual Meeting, community forums and
participation in major citywide events.

s Authored and promoted digital and print materials to increase visibility and advocacy
impact.

A motion was made to appoint Emily Boyle to the board position previously held by Taylor Nielsen.

MM|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Motion - Member
2nd — Member

Trustees Voting Aye Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Earley

1. Oath of office — Bill Coutts, Nathan Hill, and Emily Boyle
Conducted by District Clerk
iv. Appointment of board positions

2. Facilities Committee
1. Plant Expansion — Sunrise/Plant Manager
L Plant Update
II. Project payments and Change Orders

I1I. Substantial / Final Completion Update
3. Plant Manager Discussion

1. Walkway

12|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

aahd

'

W Al Metals Fabrication

3160 South 1900 West Ogden, UT 84401
Phone: 801.392.9494 Fax: 801392.9544

QUOTATION

S IC T e S e www alimetalsfab.com 0029556
TO: SHIP TO:
MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER* MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER”
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
5455 W OLD HWY ROAD 5455 W OLD HWY ROAD
MOUNTAIN GREEN, UT 84050 MOUNTAIN GREEN, UT 84050
(BOTETE-3411 (801)876-3411
ATTN:  BRIANT HEMINGWAY
Date Cust No S/IM Your Referenced Inquiry  Delivery Promise F.0.B. Expiration
11/18/2025 MCUNOE ASC 7-8 WEEKS CUR DOCK
Iter] Quantity | UM Part Description Price Extepsion
HEY BRIANT,
HERE IS A PRICE QUOTE FOR THE FOLLOWING.
PRICE INCLUDES:
CAT WALK WITH RAILING ON BOTH SIDES.
BRACKETS TC ANCHOR TQ EXSISTING CONCRETE FOR
CAT WALK TQ SIT ON.
NEW RAILING ACROSS THE FROMT OF THE PIT TO
REPLACE ALUM RAIL.
PLATFORM WILL BE FABBED FROM 6” CHAMNEL AND 1.5
GRATING ON TOP.
ALL RAIL WILL BE 1.25" SCH 40 PIPE.
INSTALLATION
EVERYTHING IS QUOTED TO BE GALVANIZED.
EXCLUDES:
ENGINEERING
GRADALL FOR THE INSTALL
LET ME KNOW IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS.
THAMNK YOU-ALAN
001 1.0000 |EA |MGSID2511184 CATWALK WITH RAILING 20,529.47 2082047
Total for Quote $ 20,829.47

A motion was made to approve a catwalk to be built and installed for maintenance at the

headworks.
Motion - Member
2nd — Member

Trustees Voting

Aye

Nay

Absent

Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Boyle

Member Earley

13|Page




MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

il. ERU definition
iii. Bioworks/Huber payment update

From: Jeremy Sorensen <manager(@mgsid.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 23, 2025 3:34 PM

To: David Gibson <degibson@bioworksus.com>

Cc: Jared Andersen <jared@mgsid.com>; coutter2 1 @yahoo.com <coutter21(@yahoo.com>;
Mike Charnholm <mcharnholm@goblesampson.com>; Jared Nessler
<jnessler@copconstruction.com>; Diaz, Daniel <DADiaz@hazenandsawyer.com>; Jeff
Lundgreen <jeff.lundgreen@sunrise-eng.com>; Briant Hemingway <briant@mgsid.com>;
Benjamin Brakey <bbrakey(@copconstruction.com>

Subject: Re: Fw: Mountain Green Payment

Dear Dave,

Following numerous discussions with my team, we have identified some issues concerning the
final payment for Bioworks. We have been reviewing these matters to ensure accuracy.

The first issue pertains to the Airline Modifications. Nick Speis, Jared Andersen, and Daniel
Diaz met with you on March 28, 2025, to discuss RFI 173. At the conclusion of that meeting, a
decision was made based on your recommendations. However, after the airlines were being
installed on the ponds, Mike Rasch, a Bioworks employee informed us that the risers were
incompatible and needed to be replaced. As a result, MGSID incurred an additional cost of
$14,310.33 to rectify this issue (See Attached PCO 42). Although your instructions were
followed, and the risers were installed and changed based on direction from Bioworks, MGSID
believes that this additional cost is a result of miscommunication from Bioworks. Therefore, we
will be deducting the full amount from the outstanding balance.

Another concern arose during the installation process regarding the Bioworks system, which was
intended to be controlled by the PLC provided by Bioworks. Manfred informed us that this was
not feasible, as the Gardner Denver blowers cannot be started or stopped via a network, but can
only be monitored. It was then agreed that Bioworks would remove the PLC programming for
the blowers, and SKM would write the necessary programming and control the blowers (See
MGSID BNR Digester Blower Controls). Consequently, Bioworks did not deliver what was
originally proposed. As a result, MGSID incurred an additional cost of $12,310.00 (See attached
SKM Costs), which will also be deducted from the outstanding amount.

In total, MGSID will be paying $74,958.67 out of the $101,579.00 owed to Bioworks
($101,579.00 - $26,620.33 = $74,958.67).

Sincerely,

14|Page


mailto:manager@mgsid.com
mailto:degibson@bioworksus.com
mailto:jared@mgsid.com
mailto:coutter21@yahoo.com
mailto:coutter21@yahoo.com
mailto:mcharnholm@goblesampson.com
mailto:jnessler@copconstruction.com
mailto:DADiaz@hazenandsawyer.com
mailto:jeff.lundgreen@sunrise-eng.com
mailto:briant@mgsid.com
mailto:bbrakey@copconstruction.com

MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Jeremy Sorensen

15|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

ey © BIOWORKS

F12.445.501 e e A NS

Jamumary 2. 2026
To: Mountain Gresn Sewear Improvemsn: Disoict

Arm: Mr. Jersmy Sorensen
Manager

Dear Mr. Sorensen:

We are in receipt of your 1223725 email and undsrstand your frustration regarding the
issues you raise. We cannot, however, agres that Bioworks Is in any way respoastble for the
extra costs mvolved

To summarize using the seguencs from your email

1. The sirline modificanion ... when yowr enginser asked us for suggestions regarding
theposn’blenﬂmcmﬁgmnoﬁaedmﬂposnbkopmnsmaddmmmthe
dasign shown on our approved drasvimg In owr 328725 email to Daniel Diaz of
Sunrise Engmeering. which was amsched to your 122325 email we stated “Our
submurtal drswing shows the method we suzgest This isn't the only possibility,
however. If local needs call for another desizm that’s OK so long as the stub
extends far enough over the slope to prevent the Bioworks hose from rubbing on
the slope™ Boldness shown for emphasis.

When our techmician amived mn site. he guackly found that the mstalled piping did not
mees that requirement by 2 wids marsmm After discussions on site, with COP
Construction (the only enary availabls) 1t was agreed that the existing pipmg would
be modifiad to create 2 configuranion that would avoid rubbing. That was done.

Because the work was reguirad by an emor by others we cannot accept rasponsibility
for the addad cost.

12

The digester blowesr progzramumins - Bioworks provided the equipment for the BNR
Treatment Equipment mnciodinzg blowsrs and 2 PLC contol The digester aeration
system and blowers (with VFD:s) we=r= not part of our scope. Those components were
supplied by EDI (Nexom). we belisve

As an accommodation to Sunrise Ensinserinz we agread to provide limited items that
had besn onurtad from the spaaficanons — DO probes for the digesters and the
addition of a section 1o our PLC program o receive a signal from the probes and then
send a signal to the blower VFDs. Thas was offerad ar no additional charge

16|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

© BIOWORKS

When our conirols enFinssr snived on sitz be foumd that the digester blowers ware
incompatible with that schemes S0, for ressons ouiside our conirel we were umsble to
fmalize the programmins.

Af am omsite mestng it was agresd thar SEM would tske over and finalize the digester
blower control isswe.

Especially since our orizinsl offer was meds 35 3n scoommodation. at no charpe, and
since the reason for the nead for SEM o ke gver was ouside our control, we cannoet
accept A chargs for the Issue.
Please forvard pavment for the ourstanding balanca (5101, 579000 without forther dalay.
Simcerely,

Diavid Gibson
Biormroris Morth Amenica Tnc.

iv. Documentation with COP 2026 expenses

4. Manager Discussion
1. Caselle software

17|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Caselle™ Hosted Software & Services Proposal
Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District 2
December 2, 2025

Proposal Summary

License Type Hosted
Total Training $6.725
Total Setup 5400
Total Conversion 7.070
Total Investment $19,195

A deposit of 50% of the total proposal price is required with order. The
remaining balance is due when the first application goes live.

Annual Hosted Maintenance & Support will be $13,200.
Maintenance & Support will be billed when the first application goes live.

I have read and agree to all terms & conditions proposed herein. 1
understand if Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District 2 is unable to
provide data to Caselle in the requested format, additional fees will apply.

Signature

Printed Name & Title

Date

18| Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Caselle™ Hosted Software & Services Proposal

Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District 2
December 2, 2025
Proposal Detail

- Annual
Caselle® Application Software L¥:pu:e Training Setup Conversion Total Software

: Assurance

General Ledger Hosted §2,250 $700 $1,000 $3.950 §3.000 |
Budgeting | Hosted | Included | = = | -1 | =
Bank Reconciliation Hosted | Included - 3.000 3,000 -
miExcel GL Hosted | Included 1000 = 1.000 540
Accounts Payable Hosted 550 500 70 1,120 3,000
Utility Management |  Hosted 3,375 | 1,500 3.000 | 7.875 [ 3,000
Cash Receipting Hosted 550 500 - 1,050 2,460
Caselle Community Portal |  Hosted | Included | 1200 - | 1,200 | =
- Utility Management Hosted - - - - *
Cash Receipting Web Services | Hosted - - - | -1 -
Utility Management Web Services Hosted - - - - -
Grand Total = $6,725 $5,400 $7,070 $19,195 £12,000
Small Site Discount [3.600)
Sub Total $8,400
*Annual Portal Fees for UM 1,200
Three (3] Concurrent User Licenses 3,600
Total Annual Software Assurance 513,200

Notes:

1. Training will take place at Caselle. We offer several options for training: at our location in Provo Utah,
Onsite and Online. We offer a significant discount to come to our location for training and have found that
taking you out of your environment helps avoid interruptions and can be the most beneficial. Some sites
request a combination of all three. We encourage training at Caselle but are more than happy to do what
works best for you and your staff.

2. Unless otherwise specified, the Implementation Fee for the Community Portal includes up to six (6) hours
of implementation work by Caselle staff. Any required work above six hours will be billed in hourly
increments at $200/hour.

3. [f during the Implementation the Pre-Live and Go-Live needs to be re-scheduled you may be subject to
additional charges up to $10,000 depending on frequency and reason.

Caselle allocates resources and staffing to accomplish your implementation in a timely manner. When hard
dates are set and missed it affects multiple projects and requires more time and resources,

4. History Conversion is available on a per bid basis. Additional fees may apply upon review of existing legacy
data.

19|Page



MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Caselle™ Hosted Software & Services Proposal
Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District 2
December 2, 2025
Community Portal Detail

Credit/Debit Card [3.25%] Convenience Fee with a [$2.50] minimum
ACH [$1.95] Flat Rate

All fees include recurring, one-time payments, all payment channels, and all card brands (Visa, MasterCard,
American Express and Discover).

OTHER FEES

e-Bills — Only charged when customer no longer
receives a printed bill

Text Motifications — Charged per outbound text
notification to each contact

5.20 per e-Bill - Waived

5.10 per outbound - Waived

Chargeback 515.00 per chargeback
Returned Check Fee 515.00 per returned check
PCl Compliance Fee 510.00 per month — [Waived]

COMMUNITY CONNECT PORTAL FEES

Utility Billing [$100/Mo]

Implementation Fee — Includes integration, billing ) )
) ) o [$1,200] One-time, paid for upfront
process configuration, portal setup, and staff training
Client Support - Unlimited phone + e-mail inguiries.
) ) Included
Assigned Client Success Manager
*Unless otherwise specified, Implementation Fee includes up to six (6] hours of implementation work by Caselie staff. Any required

work above six hours will be billed hourly increments at 5200/hour.

A motion was made to ratify the purchase of the Caselle Software Program.
Motion - Member
2nd — Member

Trustees Voting Aye Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson
Member Boyle
Member Earley
ii. Privacy Policy
L. See Attached

A motion was made to ratify the Privacy Program as presented.
Motion - Member
2nd — Member

20|Page




MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

Trustees Voting

Aye

Nay

Absent

Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Boyle

Member Earley

iii. Kent Smith Park update — No Update

5. Executive Committee

6. Closed Session to discuss pending litigation, property purchase, or personnel

7. Board New Business

1.

Reminder for Yearly Board Training —

I. Open and Public Mtg Act — Required Yearly
II. Special Service District Training — (Only Required on election,

appointment, or re-election years)

http://training.auditor.utah.gov/

8. Motion to Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at _: pm.

Motion - Member

2nd — Member

Trustees Voting Aye Nay Absent Abstain

Chairman Coutts

Vice Chair Hill

Member Willardson

Member Boyle

Member Earley

Meeting Adjourned

Common Acronyms:

- ARPA — Grant request — American Rescue Plan Act

- BNR - Biological Nutrient Reactor — our proposed treatment process
- CFP - Capital Facilities Plan

- CIB - Community Impact Board

21|Page



http://training.auditor.utah.gov/

MOUNTAIN GREEN SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROVIDING PROACTIVE, EFFICIENT & QUALITY SOLUTIONS FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE
5455 West Old Highway Road, Mountain Green, Utah

- CMGC - Construction Manager / General Contractor (hire the General first)
- COE - Calendar of Events

- CWWC = Cotton Woods Water Company

- DEQ — Department of Environmental Quality

- DMR — Discharge Monitoring Report (plant performance to the State for the EPA)
-  ECD - Estimated Completion Date

- ERU - Equivalent Residential Units — same as one house

- FOG - Fats, oil, grease

- HWC - Highlands Water Company

- 1 & I - Inflow and Infiltration — water entering our system that is not supposed to
- LOI - Letter of Intent

- MOA - Memorandum of Agreement

- MOU - Memorandum of Understanding (agreement)

- MWPP — Municipal Water Planning Program

- NLT - Not Later Than / Not Less Than

- RFP — Request for Proposal (qualified biding)

- SCADA - Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition — Plant computer controls
- TSS — Total Suspended Solids

- UDOT - Utah Department of Transportation

- WPR - Wasatch Peaks Ranches

- WPRUD — Wasatch Peaks Ranches Utility District

22|Page



